

MONDAY  
Feb. 28th  
1965.

The meeting <sup>was</sup> ~~met~~ in the Ante-room of the Public Hall at 7.30pm. & these members were present:- Councillor J. Cheape Messrs. T. Paton, G. Ross, W. Brunton, R. Millar, Rev. M. Macdonald - Miss Gibson & Miss Scott. C. Brough presided.

Apologies were received from Messrs Barlas & Murray.

Minutes of previous meeting were read, approved & signed.

WALLACE  
PARK.

(a) Drainage - The Dept. of Agriculture scheme for drainage of headwater area of the Eden to Calford Bridge was due for discussion on Wed. 2nd March - after which date Councillors would have further information.

(b) Bye-laws. - In the move to bring these up to date and more in keeping with present day requirements it was agreed to pass copies of same round members who should read, & suggest changes. Committee would meet 1 week before AGM to discuss proposed changes which would then be put forward at the Public Meeting.

VILLAGE.

(a) Street Signs. - District Councillor reported that these were to be erected during the coming financial year:-

(b) Doctors Surgery in Village:- Clerk reported on discussion with spokesman for the doctors - ~~matter~~ request turned down on grounds of (a) cost (b) time & (c) other villages would wish similar advantages.

(c) Street Lighting. - D. Councillor reported that whole system was due for overhaul - better fittings to be provided & wiring re-laid. Possibility that this would be done this summer - after which there should be an improvement.

(d) Housing list:- A meeting was to be held at the end of

March to decide needs to meet requirements of those people with highest points - information would be available thereafter. ✓

CORRESPONDENCE.

Clerk had received word that the seat ordered from Bridge of Earn Hospital Occupational Therapy Dept. was ready. R. Millar reported its collection & storage until weather improved for erection on Arngask knee.

A letter had been received from the Hall Committee drawing attention to the proposed closure of the local library in favour of a mobile service calling once a fortnight - and asking the council to find out what members of the public felt about it. ~~to take the necessary steps to express their wishes which~~ Meeting decided to find this out via Clerk - who would then write to the County librarian.

GRASS CUTTING.

Treasurer had received letter stating that contract for this work had been ~~re~~ allocated & estimated cost would be £52-10/- . As our grant for year amounted to £50 - this would be insufficient to meet this. District Councillors agreed to look into this matter & apply for increase.

TURNING POINT.

It was reported that the turning point at Hayfield road was being used to park vehicles. J. Cheape said he would see <sup>Road Surveyor</sup> ~~Police~~ with view to having NO PARKING notices erected. ✓

LIGHTING.

Complaints regarding Time Clock & Times of lights going off on. In view of forthcoming overhaul it was agreed to leave this matter meantime.

CONDITIONS of LET. of PARK.

It was agreed to have conditions of let stencilled for enclosure to parties wishing to hire Wallace Park.

A.G.M.

The Annual Public Meeting was arranged for Mon. 9th May at 7.30 pm. Committee to meet one week beforehand.

There being no further business meeting was declared closed.

*Colin Brough*

MONDAY  
2nd MAY '66

On which evening the council met in the Hall Ante-room at 7.30 pm. In attendance were Councillors I. Barlas & J. Cheape, Messrs W. Murray, W. Brunton, G. Ross, R. Millar Misses Gibson & Scott with C. Brough in the Chair.

Minutes of the last meeting were read & signed.

Matters arising from same were dealt with as follows:-

WALLACE  
PARK.

Drainage:- It was agreed to await further developments but Mr. Barlas to approach authorities re progress made.

Bye-Laws:- After discussion it was agreed that the following laws be altered & J. Cheape to approach District Clerk to see what could be done.

Rule 11 - suggest adding words 'without permission'.

Rule 13 - Do. Do.

Rule 14 - Do. Do.

Rule 15 - delete 'written'

Rule 17 - Do.

~~VILLAGE~~

These suggestions would be put before the Public Meeting next Monday.

WAYSIDE  
SEATS.

As six new seats had been provided over the past few years it was agreed to approach District Council to take over maintenance of same.

LIBRARY  
SERVICES.

After discussion with local borrowers a petition had been drawn up and signed by 29 people - & Clerk had written to County Librarian stating the objections to the new service proposed by him. Mr. G. Ross had personally met the Librarian & expressed the local views more fully - also hearing the views of the Librarian on the points raised. Meantime the matter would be dealt with at the Library Sub-committee <sup>meeting</sup> in June - and thereafter ~~the~~ we would be informed of the results.

TURNING  
POINT.

The 'No Parking' Notice had been put up at Turning Point in Hayfield Road.

## DRAINAGE.

Mr. Cheape reported on flooding & overflow of tank behind new houses - agreed to enlarge intake & outlet pipes to tank to try to alleviate matters - if not a success the department would take further measures.

## FUNDS.

To augment School Funds it had been suggested that any funds belonging to Societies now in obedience might be taken over by this council - if the <sup>former</sup> office-bearers (if any) could be approached and were agreeable.

Three such societies were named - Games Society.

Flower Show Society and Dramatic Society.

C. Brough & members to investigate before Public Meeting.

There being no further business - meeting was declared closed.

Colin Byrd

MONDAY  
9th May 1966.

The Annual Public Meeting was held in the Hall Ante-room at 7.30 pm. Apart from members there ~~was~~<sup>was</sup> nobody from general public in attendance.

Minutes of last AGM were read and their adoption moved by Rev. M. Macdonald.

Treasurer's  
Report.

The Treasurer's Report showed increases in all balances over last year - namely as follows:-

	1965	1966.
Community Council Fund.	£ 21-19-4½	£ 24-8-4½
Wallace Park Fund	£ 59-5-3	£ 61-8-7.
Special Fund for Park.	£ 28-10-0.	£ 35-12-0.
School Prize Fund	Cap: £ 310-nil.	£ 14-0-0.
Cash in Deposit Account (Royal Bank - Kinross)		£ 135-8-11½.
Cash on Hand		£ 6-15-0.

These figures were deemed very satisfactory - and their adoption moved by W. Murray - see. J. Cheape.

Chairman's  
Report.

In his review of the past year the chairman mentioned no fewer than fifteen items <sup>to</sup> which the council & councillors had been ~~applying~~<sup>applying</sup> their efforts for improving existing amenities or creating new ones - and also expressed his regret that there were no members of the village public here to learn of our efforts on their behalf.

- (1) Councillors - We had lost Col T. Harris Hunter as County Councillor - but he had been <sup>ably</sup> replaced by Mr. I. Barlas.
- (2) Midday Postal Despatch - Due to efforts of District Councillor & members of this body - representation had been made to Head Postmaster in Perth - and this had been restored.
- (3) Street Signs - These would be erected at various

points in the village - not just at new streets.

- (4) Surgery in Village:- Local doctors had been approached but they were definite in their refusal to open one here on grounds of expense - Lack of time & number of places of similar size who would demand similar facilities.
- (5) Street Lighting:- The whole system was due to be overhauled this coming financial year and it was hoped that various complaints received ~~th~~ regarding same would be met with <sup>these</sup> improvements.
- (6) Turning Point:- This had been provided in Hayfield Rd. No Parking notices was erected to prevent parking there.
- (7) Library:- Under review at moment was matter of closing the local library in favour of mobile van. Petition had been filed protesting against closure.
- (8) Housing:- Before 1970 - 7 houses to be built - 2 or 3 begun this year. Type depending on needs of those with most points.
- (9) Wayside Seats:- These had been re-nued over years & it was felt that District Council should be again approached re taking them over.
- (10) Drain at Avenue:- Wider intake & outlet pipes being provided to cope with heavy flow. If not a success further steps to be taken.
- (11) School Prize Fund:- Since matter raised last May - two funds were thought to be in obedience - Chairman making ~~offer~~ <sup>approaches</sup> to remaining committee members of these organisations with a view to having funds handed over to School Prize Fund.
- (12) Wallace Park:- (a) Drainage scheme - in hands of Ministry of Agriculture. (b) Picnic Parties - (c) Parking - Police Notified.

- (d). Bye-laws - alterations planned to bring up to date.
- (e) Grass-cutting - cost increased to £32-10/- (f) Annual grant increased to £75 to cover (e). (g) Appreciation to W. Murray for his interest - & thanks for all he had done over past year.
- (13). Village Officer:- Following enquiries regarding extent of duties these were defined as follows - (1) keep pavements & streets tidy - (2) attend conveniences in Park when required for Picnic Parties etc.

Chairman mentioned a late item - Give-way Signs - Strong possibility there would be two in village at Post Office Crossroads & foot of Greenbank Rd at junction with A.90.

**RETIRALS.** Three councillors due for retiral in 1966 were :- C. Brough - G. Ross and Rev. M. Macdonald. The meeting proposed their re-election en bloc, for a further three year period - and this was accepted.

**BYE-LAWS.** It was proposed that the following laws be amended as follows :- Rule 11 - add words 'without permission'.  
Rule 13 & 14 as above.

Rules 15 & 17. It had been agreed to delete the word 'written' from each of these - but on advice of District Clerk - this was withdrawn - so 15 & 17 would remain unaltered.

These amendments for sending to District Council were put forward ~~proposed~~ by Chairman - Moved by R. Miller & seconded by W. Murray.

**OPEN DISCUSSION.** In an attempt to ~~inter~~ break through public apathy it was proposed that a report of these proceedings be sent to local reporter for inclusion in local newspapers, (Clerk).

A complaint from two visitors had been made regarding obstruction of pavement outside joiner's shop. Clerk to approach Policeman but not to lodge formal complaint in writing.

The meeting closed after Treasurer proposed that a donation be given to Hall Committee as in past years. Unanimously agreed - amount to be £1.

Thanks were given to C. Brough for convening the meeting.

C. Brough

Monday  
27th June  
1966.

On which evening the council met in the Anteroom of the Village Hall at 7.30 pm. Members present were G. Ross, R. Millar, T. Paton, Rev. M. Macdonald, J. Cheape, I. Barlas, W. Murray, Clerk. C. Brough presided.

Matters arising from previous meetings were discussed and were as follows: -

Park Drain.  
age.

The position at present was that a scheme was being prepared by Department of Agriculture & Fisheries - This would be presented to the landowners concerned and it would depend on their agreement to pay a share of the costs - <sup>whether</sup> ~~before~~ work could be carried out.

BYE-LAWS.

Clerk had no reply to letter sent on 30th May. District Councillor said that matter had been referred to a later meeting.

WAYSIDE  
SEATS.

District Councillor reported that District Council had agreed to recommend they be taken over if in good repair.



## LIBRARY

No reply had been received regarding outcome of meeting of Library Sub-committee at which the local protests against mobile services van were to be raised.

## DRAINAGE

## NEW HOUSES.

Regarding improvements to catchment tank - the contractor due to carry out work within next few weeks.

FUNDS.

Efforts were being made to contact office bearers of one or two Societies to see if they wished to hand over any funds to local School Fund. Referred to next meeting.

Other matters raised and discussed were:-

## CHAIRMAN.

C. Brough re-elected for further three years.

Regrets were expressed at the passing of Miss Gibson whose regular attendance at his meetings and interest in local affairs had been much appreciated.

## CO-OPTION.

It was agreed to co-opt another member for the remainder of his term of three years i.e. May 1967. Clerk was asked to approach Miss C. Robertson - Melville Terr.

## ARNQASK

## CHURCHYARD

Arrangements were to be made for scything the old churchyard - once or twice per year - left to Councillors.

## DOGS FOULING

## FOOTPATHS.

Clerk was instructed to write to Sanitary Dept. to find out if there was any legislation regarding dogs fouling pavements in landward areas.

There being no further business meeting was closed.

Colin Brough

- Monday  
24th Dec. '66. On which evening the Council met in the Anteroom of the Public Hall at 7.30 pm. Members present were Messrs. I. Barles, R. Millar, G. Ross, W. Brunton, W. Murray, Misses C. Robertson & M. Scott. C. Brough presided.
- Apology. Mr. J. Cheape was unable to attend & sent his apologies.
- Minutes. Minutes of previous meeting were read, amended, approved & signed.
- Arising from minutes the following were discussed.
- DRAINAGE SCHEME FOR THE EDEN. Mr. Barles - County Councillor - said that the matter had been referred to the Roads Department of County Council because of the structure of the Calford Bridge impeded the lowering of river bed to drain surrounding low-lying areas. The meeting agreed not to press the matter further ~~until~~ meantime & referred it to next meeting.
- BYE-LAWS. Clerk had received a letter from District Council to say that our plans to have certain rules amended had been turned down by the Council.
- UPKEEP OF WAYSIDE SEATS. Another letter from District Council stated their agreement to take over the responsibility for maintaining eight seats by the wayside of various roads round the village.
- LIBRARY. CLOSURE. The County Librarian had replied to the local petition protesting against closure of static library. At its meeting of 21st June the Library Sub-Committee felt that the new Mobile Library Service should be tried for a full period of twelve months and resolved "not to restore the static branch library at this stage but to review the service in this village after the Mobile Library had been in operation for one year". In view of this it was decided to review the matter early next year.

**CATCHMENT TANK AT NEW HOUSES.** The recent alterations to this tank had not solved the problem of overflow, as had been shown during heavy rainstorms of past few weeks. Matter would be dealt with by local authority & further steps taken as promised to the District Councillor & reported by him at meeting of 2nd. May '66.

**DOGS FOULING FOOTPATHS.** Clerk had made enquiries of Sanitary Department & Police if any bye-laws existed regarding control of dogs in areas such as our village - but no legislation regarding this could be traced. County Councillor agreed to look into this matter.

**SEATS IN WALLACE PARK.** Arrangements were made to take in seats for the winter. Two seats were broken & several members agreed to buy wood & repair them in the spring.

Clerk to remind D. Meldrum - Joiner to repair Notice Board at entrance to Park.

**RESIGNATION.** As Clerk would shortly be leaving the district - she asked that Council accept her resignation. Chairman expressed regret of members that this should occur and thanked her for services given to the Council over the past seven years.

Meeting agreed that Chairman & W. Murray be asked to approach Mrs I. Wylie or Miss F. Deans with a view to filling post of Clerk - person to be co-opted ~~and~~ until May 1968 when this ~~vacancy~~ <sup>member</sup> was due to retire.

**BOWLING CLUB.** W. Murray asked if this Council would be willing to give support to the local Bowling Club in their efforts to have the Green & Clubhouse taken over by the County Council. Due

to the heavy expense incurred by Rates & Taxes the Club would be unable to continue next season. The meeting agreed in principle to do this - and referred matter to next meeting for review.

DERELICT  
PROPERTY.

County Councillor asked for information regarding ownership of property opposite the Bridge House. Members thought it belonged to Dundee people who came occasionally in summer months to stay at weekends. In view of dilapidated state of buildings - Mr. Barlas thought steps should be taken to deal with it via Sanitary Dept. or Roads Dept. - and members agreed to give ~~any~~ support to Councillor on this matter.

STREET  
LIGHTING.

Due to economic situation the plans to overhaul local street lighting system were postponed meantime.

W. Murray asked that a letter of thanks be sent to Mr. A. Reid of Lochelbank for cutting the long grass in Wallace Park again this season. Clerk instructed to do this.

There being no further business the meeting closed with a vote of thanks to the Chairman.

John Brown

Tuesday 28<sup>th</sup> Feb. 1967

The Council met in the anteroom of the Village Hall, at 7.30 p.m. Members present were Messrs. R. Hillas, Wm. Branton, C. Brough, J. Paton, W. Murray, G. Ross, D. Barlas, & Mrs. F. Deans.

Apologies  
Minutes

Apologies for absence were sent by Mrs. C. Robertson & Mr. J. Cheape.

The minutes of the previous meeting were read, approved, & signed. The position of Clerk to the Council, was accepted by Mrs. F. Deans.

Drainage  
for Eden

The Council decided that it was unsafe to tamper with the structure of the Cullford Bridge to assist in the drainage of the surrounding area, but decided that Mr. Barlas & Mr. Crichton should clear their own areas, & approach Mr. Beveridge to do likewise.

Catchment  
Tank.

The problem of the overflowing of the Catchment Tank is still with us, & Mr. Brough is referring the matter to Mr. Cheape, in order that he may take it up with the County Council.

Grass in  
Wallace Park

Mr. Murray was asked to see Mr. Reed, about the grass in Wallace Park, & Mr. Brough agreed to obtain an estimate from Mr. Davidson, for barked wire & brackets to protect the Pavilion in park. The meeting also agreed that Mr. Meldrum should be approached to see to the Notice Board at the entrance to the Park.

Bowling Club

After discussion, it was decided that Mr. Murray should approach Mr. Sharp to see on what terms the County Council would be willing to take over the local Bowling Club.

Derelict Prop.

The owners of the property opposite Bridge House, have

Tuesday 28<sup>th</sup> Feb. 1967

The Council met in the anteroom of the Village Hall, at 7.30 p.m. Members present were Messrs. R. Hillas, Wm. Branton, C. Brough, J. Paton, W. Murray, G. Ross, D. Barlas, & Mrs. F. Deans.

Apologies  
Minutes

Apologies for absence were sent by Mrs. C. Robertson & Mr. J. Cheape.

The minutes of the previous meeting were read, approved, & signed. The position of Clerk to the Council, was accepted by Mrs. F. Deans.

Drainage  
for Eden

The Council decided that it was unsafe to tamper with the structure of the Lillford Bridge to assist in the drainage of the surrounding area, but decided that Mr. Barlas & Mr. Crichton should clear their own areas, & approach Mr. Beveridge to do likewise.

Catchment  
Tank.

The problem of the overflowing of the Catchment Tank is still with us, & Mr. Brough is referring the matter to Mr. Cheape, in order that he may take it up with the County Council.

Grass in  
Wallace Park

Mr. Murray was asked to see Mr. Reed, about the grass in Wallace Park, & Mr. Brough agreed to obtain an estimate from Mr. Davidson, for barked wire & brackets to protect the Pavilion in park. The meeting also agreed that Mr. Meldrum should be approached to see to the Notice Board at the entrance to the Park.

Bowling Club

After discussion, it was decided that Mr. Murray should approach Mr. Sharp to see on what terms the County Council would be willing to take over the local Bowling Club.

Derelict Prop.

The owners of the property opposite Bridge House, have

finally been traced, & have promised to put forward plans for rebuilding & developing the said property.

Street Lighting  
Bus Shelter

Plans for this scheme are still in abeyance.

As the main bus shelter in the village is quite inadequate Mr. Barlas decided to discuss with Mr. Sharp the possibility of his allowing a section of his garden to house a suitable shelter.

The Clerk was instructed to write to Alexanders, drawing their attention to the fact that buses were leaving Glenfarg before their appointed time.

It was unanimously agreed to send a letter of appreciation to the former clerk, Mrs. Maemie Scott, for her valued & faithful service over her period of office.

The business of the meeting being concluded, the proceedings were brought to an end, by recording a vote of thanks to the chairman & new clerk.

John Brown

Monday 24<sup>th</sup> April 1967.

The Council met in the ante-room of the Village Hall on Monday 24<sup>th</sup> April 1967. Members present were Messrs. R. Milled, Wm Braunter, C. Brough, J. Paton, W<sup>m</sup> Murray, J. Cherpe, J. Baslas, Rev. M. Macdonald + the Misses Robertson + Deans.

The minutes of the last meeting were read + approved.

Drainage

Mr. Baslas has started draining his land around the Eden, +

scheme for Eden.

Mr. Gourdee has been assisting Mr. Beveridge in a similar operation

Catchment Tank.

Mr. J. Cherpe informs the meeting that the plans for the Catchment Tank are under way.

Wallace Park.

Mr. Murray still has to see Mr. Reed about the grass in the Wallace Park. It was agreed by the members of the committee, that an inspection should be made of the park to check on the boundaries, fences, seats etc. + to ascertain what repairs were needed, + to obtain an estimate for the execution of same.

Bowling Club.

The matter of the Bowling Club is still under discussion

Bus Shelter.

Mr. Baslas made inquiries about the proposed new 'bus shelter in the village, + was informed by the County Council that it would cost £83 for the removal of the old shelter. As this charge seems excessive, Mr. Baslas plans to see the road surveyor to see exactly what this sum entails.

Bus times

As no reply was received by the clerk to her letter of 2<sup>nd</sup> March, sent to the 'bus company with reference to the early departure of 'buses, Mr. Brough has decided to call in to the Kirkcaldy 'bus office, to lodge the complaint in person.

Old Churchyard.

Mr. J. Cherpe has agreed to ask the County Council if arrangements can be made for the cutting of the grass in



the old churchyard, at least twice per year. He has also agreed to ask Mr. Rodger, the village officer, if he will clear some raspberry canes which have been cut, and are lying on the roadside of the Dunrover Road.

There being no further business, the meeting was closed by a vote of thanks to the chairman.

Colin Brown

Monday 15<sup>th</sup> May 1967

A meeting of the Council was held in the ante-room of the village hall on Monday 15<sup>th</sup> May 1967. Members present were Messrs. R. Mellar, J. Barlas, J. Paton, G. Ross, M. Macdonald, C. Brough, & the Messrs. Robertson & Deans.

Apologies. Apologies for absence were sent by Messrs W. Bounton, J. Cheape & W. Murray.

Wallace Park. There was a report from Mr. W. Murray that Mr. Reid had again agreed to harvest the rough grass in the Wallace Park. An inspection of the park & its boundaries has now been completed & it has been reported that about 100 yds of fencing will be required, the estimated cost being around £50. Mr. Barlas has agreed to pay half of this amount. Mr. Paton moved that this work should be carried out & the motion was seconded by Mr. Mellar. Mr. Cheape has decided on the suggestion of the meeting, to see the County Council about the clearing of the ditch in the park.

Catchment Tank. On Thursday 18<sup>th</sup> May, Mr. Barlas has to meet Mr. Blair, the County clerk, in order that they may inspect the Catchment Tank.

'Bus shelter.  
Along with  
Churchyard.

The business of the 'bus shelter is still under negotiation.

It has been reported by the County Council that they have agreed to cut the grass in the old churchyard, at least twice per year.

Mr. Barlas suggested that on the basis of the estimated cost of £90 for the cutting of the grass in the Wallace Park, that the committee should apply for an increase in the grant of £75 at present <sup>being</sup> received.

The business being completed, the committee proceeded to the A.G.M.

Colin Downey

Monday 15<sup>th</sup> May 1967.

The Annual General Meeting was held in the ante-room of the Hall at 7.30 p.m. being attended by committee members only. The minutes of the last A.G.M. were read, their adoption being moved by the Rev. Harold Macdonald, & seconded by Mr. Barlas.

Treas. Report. The Treasurer then submitted a very favourable report, composed of the following details.

	<u>1966</u>	<u>1967</u>
Community Council Fund	24. 8. 7½	30. 4. 6½
Expenses (Hall)		1
		<hr/> 29. 4. 6½
Wallace Park Fund	61. 8. 7	100. 10. 11
Special Fund	35. 12. .	40. 15. .
School Prize Fund	14. . . .	14. . . .
Cash in Deposit A/c	133. 8. 11½	177. 9. .
Cash in Hand		6. 15

The adoption of these figures was moved by Mr. J. Paton. Sec. by Mr. Barlas, who expressed his appreciation of the good work done by the Treasurer, Mr. R. Hillard.

Chairman's Report. In his review of the past year, the chairman stated, that on the whole, the condition of the village was very satisfactory.

Mr. Macdonald then suggested that a letter of appreciation should be sent to Mr. Rogers, the village officer, for his part in keeping the village attractive & tidy.

Mr. Brough then made reference to the passing of Mrs. Gibson, who had been a faithful & attentive committee member. We had also lost our clerk, Mrs. Scott, who

had taken up residence in Broughty Ferry. These two vacancies had been filled by Mrs C. Robertson, & Mrs J. Deane.

Wayside Seats

The wayside seats have been taken over by the council. Give-way signs have now been erected, but the Bye-law alterations have been hiked down.

The catchment tank is still under review, & the question of street lighting is still in abeyance.

Housing

Three new houses for elderly people, are being erected.

Library

The mobile library has to be in operation for one experimental year.

Bus shelters

Two new bus shelters have been erected, one in the village, & one at Paris Bridge.

Bowling &

Mrs Marray has to attend a meeting in Perth, to discuss the future of the Bowling & Tennis Clubs.

Tennis Clubs

Wallace Park.

There were five premises in the park this summer, which is quite gratifying. We are greatly indebted to Mr. Murray for his interest in the park, & we thank Mr. Rees for harvesting the long grass.

Retirals

Members due to retire were Mr. R. Kellard, Mr. J. Paton, & Mrs C. Robertson. Mr. Macdonald proposed their re-election for another three years, & this was sec. by Mr. Barlas.

Mr. J. Paton proposed that the annual donation to the Village Hall should be increased to £2 & this was agreed by the committee.

A motion was then moved by Mr. Paton that the com. should inquire into dormant funds in the village & this was sec. by Mrs C. Robertson. Mr. Brough was then thanked for his efficient chairmanship.

Colin Brough